
Rockford Public Schools | 350 N. Main Street | Rockford, MI  49341 

Regular Meeting 
Date | time – Monday, July 10, 2023 | 5:30 p.m. 

Location Administration Boardroom 

Informational Agenda  

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. MASB BOARD TRAINING 

E. ACTION ITEMS – CONSENT AGENDA  
To save time during the meeting, we are using a consent agenda.  Items on the consent agenda include 
those that are routine in nature or have been previously discussed by the Board of Education.  Board 
trustees may request to have any item removed for a separate discussion and vote. 
1. Approval of Minutes.  Minutes of June 12, 2023, Regular Meeting. 
2. Presentation of Bill in the amount of $16,820,260.73 
3. Certified Staff Resignations.   

F. CONSENT GROUPING (ORGANIZATION) 
1. Banking Approvals—Depository for School Funds/Savings and Checking Accounts and 

Signatures Fund/Savings  
2. Fidelity Bond 

A fidelity bond is required by the General School Law (380.243) for the Treasurer of the Board of 
Education and the person serving as the Assistant Superintendent of Finance.  The amounts are 
not specified but in the past, you have placed the following amounts: 
Treasurer $10,000 
Assistant Superintendent of Finance $20,000 

3. Appointment of Sex Education Advisory Board Co-Chairs (§380.1507) 
Superintendent Matthews will recommend the appointment of two co-chairs to the district’s Sex 
Education Advisory Board. 

4. Appointment of Legal Counsel for the 2023-24 School Year 
Superintendent Matthews will recommend the Board of Education continue to engage Thrun Law 
Firm, PC to serve as district legal counsel. When matters may occasionally dictate, the 
Administration is requesting the Board’s permission to use an alternate appropriate local firm. 

5. Appointment of School Auditors for the 2022-23 Fiscal Year Audit 
Superintendent Matthews will recommend that the Board of Education appoint Hungerford 
Nichols as school auditors for the previous fiscal year. 

G. REPORTS 



 
 

2 

Curriculum and Instruction Committee Meeting  

H. OLD BUSINESS 

None  

I. NEW BUSINESS 
1. SEL Curriculum 
2. Summer Tax Resolution 
3. Certified Staff Recommendations  

J. RECOGNITION OF VISITORS AND HEARING OF PEOPLE PRESENT 
This is a business meeting of the Board of Education held in public. Comments are welcome from the 
audience during “Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of People Present,” however, they are comments 
only and speakers are limited to three minutes.  The audience is asked to refrain from making 
comments or asking questions at any other time during the meeting.  If you have a specific concern, 
please feel free to speak with a Board trustee or the Superintendent of Schools after the meeting or 
call the Superintendent’s Office at 616-863-6557. 

K. SUPERINTENDENT REMARKS 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



Meeting Minutes - Regular Meeting 
June 12, 2023 

Date | time Monday – June 12, 2023 | 5:30 p.m. 

Location Administration Boardroom 
Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom 

In Attendance 

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jarrod Folsom, Christie Ramsey, Nick 

Reichenbach 

Regrets:  Jake Himmelspach 

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Mike Cuneo, Korie Wilson‐Crawford, Mindy Duba, Lisa 

Jacobs, Jodi Nester. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to amend the agenda by Kelly Freridge moving #6 from Recognition to Consent and Remove New 

Business #17.  Move the recognition section in front of the budget hearing.  Support by Christie Ramsey.  

Motion passed unanimously. 

Recognition 

A video was played, and certificates were handed out to all of the Examples in Excellence recipients. 

 

The Administrators choice art award and artwork was presented to the board of education.  This framed art 

piece will hang in the Administration building for one year. 

 

A certificate was presented to the congressional art award winner.  Her piece was purchased by and will hang 

at the Kent ISD offices. 

 

A certificate of congratulations was presented to a North Rockford Middle School student who participated 

in the National Spelling Bee contest.   

 

There were several athletic recognitions.  The Men’s 4 X 100 Meter Relay Team for their state championship 

title.  The Women’s Long Jump individual state champion winner and the Boy’s Rugby state championship 

team. 

Budget Hearing 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo presented budget information and asked for comments from 

the community.  There were no comments. 

   



Board of Education Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2023 

 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made  to  approve  the  consent  agenda  by Kelley  Freridge with  support  by Christie Ramsey.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 Approval of the minutes from the May 8, 2023 meeting. 

 Approval of the minutes from the May 18, 2023 meeting. 

 Presentation of bills in the amount of $10,424,665.28 

 MHSAA Resolution 

 Certified Staff Resignations 

 Nomination of Nick Reichenbach for MASB Board Officer 

 

Reports 

Grown Your Own Educator Grant 
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Korie Wilson‐Crawford and Executive Director of 

Community Services Lisa Jacobs submitted a grant application to the MDE.  Rockford Public Schools was 

granted 3.8 million dollars to fund the program.  We will work with three university partners and three 

areas.  We have partnerships with Grand Valley State University, Michigan State University, and Ferris State 

University.  GVSU will be for students to obtain credit and awareness.  MSU will be for current certified 

staff to obtain a Master’s degree among other certifications.  The FSU partnership will help support staff to 

obtain a teaching degree and a Bachelor’s degree.  Ms. Wilson‐Crawford explained how this program will 

have wrap‐around support for our staff to help them be successful.     

 

Committee Reports 
Policy Committee – Christie Ramsey gave a report on the policy committee meeting and discussed the items 

that were covered.  The Board Norms document is something they have been working on together.  The 

Board will have a meeting with the MASB this summer which will help with some of the questions raised at 

the policy meeting. 

 

Human Resources – Kelley Freridge talked about the Human Resources meeting and commended the 

Human Resources department on the hiring they have done so far.  Ms. Wilson‐Crawford shared that two 

tentative agreements were reached through collaborative processes.   

 

Finance –  Board President Folsom shared that there are a lot of finance items on the agenda and everything 

covered in the meeting would be covered in New Business. 

  

   



Board of Education Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2023 

 

FOIA Appeal Notice 
Dr. Steve Matthews informed the Board of Education that we have received a FOIA appeal.  The District 

FOIA Coordinator processed the FOIA.  Some of the requested information was available and some was not.  

There was also some information not provided based on FERPA laws.  A written appeal was submitted to 

the Board of Education through the FOIA Coordinator.  The appeal isn’t formally accepted until the next 

open session of the Board of Education; therefore, the appeal was received on June 12, 2023.  The Board 

should set a special meeting to review the appeal.  The Board will work with a Rockford Public Schools 

attorney to determine what action if any should be taken regarding the appeal. 

 

New Business 

Certified Staff  

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Korie Wilson‐Crawford  shared an update on  sixteen new 

Certified Staff Hires.   Motion  to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Kelley Freridge.   Motion 

passed unanimously. 

Administrator Recommendation 

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources presented a recommendation for Jesus Santillan to be hired as 

an Assistant Principal at East Rockford Middle School.  We are very excited to have him join the team.  Motion 

to approve by Christie Ramsey with  support by Kelley Freridge.   The motion passed unanimously.   Mr. 

Santillan addressed the Board of Education and thanked them for the opportunity to join the Rockford Public 

Schools team. 

Administrator Contract Renewal 
Assistant Superintendent Korie Wilson‐Crawford explained that the Administrator contracts are approved 

yearly for two additional years.  Dr. Matthews would have the ability to give incremental salary 

adjustments that are in line with REA and RESPA.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by 

Tricia Anderson.  Motion passed unanimously.   

Wage Agreements 

Assistant  Superintendent  of Human  Resources  Korie Wilson‐Crawford  discussed  the wage  agreements 

reached by the REA and RESPA.   

REA – The contract contained 30 steps.  It will be consolidated into 20 steps.  It is a retention strategy that also 

puts us in line with other districts.  The increase for the salary grid is by 3.5 percent plus steps. 

RESPA  –  The  support  staff  union  was  also  consolidated  to  15  steps  rather  than  30.    There  are  some 

classification  adjustments  based  on  comp  district  numbers.    The  paraprofessional  class  I  step  I  is  being 

increased to $15.00 per hour.  The RESPA increase is 2.1 percent. 

Board Trustee raised a concern about the starting salary of the paraprofessionals.  This is an ongoing process 

as we continue to change to be competitive. 

Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  The motion passed unanimously. 

   



Board of Education Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2023 

 

Approval of the New Elementary Building 

A survey was sent out and suggestions were collected  from 3rd‐grade students and  the community.   All 

suggested names were reviewed by the committee.   Over 250 suggested names were collected.   The name 

presented to the board for approval was Edgerton Trails.  Motion by Tricia Anderson with support by Nick 

Reichenbach.  Motion passed unanimously.   Dr. Matthews shared that current Belmont Elementary Principal 

Shannon Ouellette will be the Principal of Edgerton Trails beginning with the 2024‐2025 school year and will 

remain in role of Principal of Belmont Elementary for the 2023‐2024 school year. 

2022-2023 Budget Amendments 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo presented budget amendments for the 2022‐2023 

year. 

General Fund (including athletics) – motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Christie 

Ramsey.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Food Service – Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Barb Helms.  Motion passed 

unanimously by roll call vote. 

Activity Fund – Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Public Purpose Trust Fund – Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  

Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

2023-2024 Budget Proposals 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo presented budgets for the 2023‐2024 school year. 

General Fund – Motion to approve by Kristie Ramsey with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Food Service – Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Nick Reichenbach.  Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Debt Retirement – Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Barb Helms.  Motion passed 

unanimously by roll call vote. 

Activity Fund – Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Tricia Anderson.  Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Public Trust Fund – Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Nick Reichenbach.  Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

2023 Tax Levy Certification 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo presented the tax levy information.  Motion to 

approve document by Nick Reichenbach with support by Kelley Freridge.  Motion passed 

unanimously by roll call vote. 

Parks and Rec Millage Renewal Resolution 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo discussed the renewal of the Parks and Rec Millage 

Renewal Resolution.  If approved, this will be on the November ballot.  Motion to approve by Kelley 

Freridge with support by Barb Helms.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 



Board of Education Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2023 

Potential Land Purchase Resolution 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo presented a potential land purchase.  This land would 

be just under 3 acres the borders the Edgerton Trails Elementary.  Motion to approve by Kelley 

Freridge with support by Barb Helms.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Roguewood Bid Packet 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo introduced Mr. Guliver from OAK who presented the 

plans for expansion for Roguewood Elementary and improvements to the building.  Bids came in 

under budget.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

Crestwood Elementary Easement 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo discussed allowing  the Kent County Road Commission 

easement at Crestwood Elementary due to the change in the bus loop.  Motion to approve the resolution by 

Christie Ramsey with support by Tricia Anderson.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

North Rockford Middle School Flooring  

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo discussed the flooring needs for North Rockford 

Middle School.  The recommendation was to go with Tarkett through the consortium.  Motion to 

approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Kelley Freridge.  Motion passed unanimously.   

Roguewood Elementary Flooring 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo discussed the flooring needs for Roguewood 

Elementary School.  The recommendation was to go with Tarkett through the consortium.  Motion to 

approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Kelley Freridge.  Motion passed unanimously.   

Math Manipulatives Purchase 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction Mike Ramm showed examples of Math Manipulatives that 

would be purchased and explained how they would be used.  Teachers are very excited about these 

items.  The purchase cost will be coming from a grant that Mr. Ramm and his team received.  Motion to 

approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion passed unanimously. 

High School Classroom Library expansion 

Assistant Superintendent of Instruction Mike Ramm and Rockford High School Assistant Principal 

Rachel DeKuiper gave a presentation on Classroom Library expansions.  Board Trustee Helms voiced 

some concerns she had to Mrs. DeKuiper.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with Support by 

Kelley Freridge.  The motion passed with 5 aye votes by Tricia Anderson, Jarred Folsom, Kelley 

Freridge, Christie Ramsey, Nick Reichenbach, and 1 nay vote by Barb Helms.    

Old Business 

Board Operating Procedures 

Board President Folsom talked about the document and how it’s a useful tool to help the new board.  

It’s a supplement to the bylaws.  It’s intended to be a living, breathing document.  Motion to approve 

Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  There was discussion by the board members 



Board of Education Regular Meeting 

June 12, 2023 

regarding the document and some of the items that they do/don’t agree with.  Barb Helms moved to 

table with support from Nick Reichenbach.  Motion to table passed unanimously.     

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present 

The following individuals addressed the Board of Education.  

Helen Brinkman    Brenda Wodarski    Duane Gritter    Chris Crandall  

Superintendent Remarks 

Dr. Matthews thanked the community for their support this year and their participation in RPS events.  He 

also thanked all staff for their hard work.  He thanked both staff and the community for welcoming him. 

Adjournment 

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

       

Recording Secretary  Secretary, Board of Education 

 



BOARD REPORT ON DISBURSEMENTS
    

  DATE:  6/5/2023 6/30/2023

PAYROLL

GENERAL FUND NET PAYROLL 25 & 26 3,033,269.51
FOOD SERVICE 25 & 26 33,158.65
ATHLETIC FUND 25 & 26 37,478.52

TOTAL  ALL FUNDS 25 & 26 3,103,906.68

ALL FUNDS:
FEDERAL TAX          $ 319,879.54
SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-MEDICARE TAX $ 663,928.74
STATE TAX                $ 143,519.45
TOTAL $ 1,127,327.73

$ 4,231,234.41

BLUE CROSS INSURANCE $ 38,018.97
NVA/NATIONAL VISION   $
ADN ADMIN(DENTAL) ADMIN FEES $ 55,552.50
MESSA (VSP/MED/ LIFE) $ 762,086.68
NATIONAL INSURANCE SVCS(L TERM DISABILITY $ 13,345.12
RETIREMENT PAYROLL  $ 2,958,278.49 $ 3,827,281.76
                

GASOLINE: CR CARD  # $ 0.00

UTILITIES:
DTE ENERGY 8,047.33
CONSUMERS ENERGY $ 101,113.04

PHONE SERVICE  CRD CARD # $
BP ENERGY (FORMERLY EDF ENERGY) BULK FUEL$ 10,211.61 $ 119,371.98

BAL ON  GEN FUND CREDIT CARD # $ $ 0.00
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
KENT ISD-ITINERANTS 301,675.18
KENT ISD-TRANSPORTATION 101,088.91

$ 402,764.09

TOTAL OF ABOVE $ 8,580,652.24
BALANCE OF TOTAL GENERAL FUND 372,292.90
SINKING FUND REG CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND ACH CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND CREDIT CARD 0.00
2019 BOND REG CKS 353,140.64
2019 BOND ACH CKS 146,126.56
2019 BOND CREDIT CARD 50,537.48
2023 BOND REG CKS 180,000.31
2023 BOND ACH CKS 6,654,900.16
2023 BOND CREDIT CARD 0.00
GENERAL FUND ACH CKS 50,000.00
GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD 432,610.44
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 16,820,260.73



Human Resources Department 
Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 

From: Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

Date: July 10, 2023 

Subject: 2023-2024 SCHOOL YEAR RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 

RESIGNATIONS                                                                                                                                                                      

Bridgette Aldrich  Teacher   High School   06/02/2023                                                                      





RPS Board of Education Curriculum and Instruction Council

June 15, 2023

Meeting Location: Administration Building Meeting Time: 7:30 a.m.

Attendance: Mike Ramm, Tricia Anderson, Jarrod Folsom, Kelley Freridge, Larinda Fase
(7:30 a.m. - 8:27 a.m.), and Tracy Ignasiak (recorder)

Tricia called the meeting to order at 7:36 a.m.

Kelley motioned and Jarrod supported to approve the May 2023 minutes.

Welcome
Mike Ramm welcomed all in attendance and shared the purpose of the Board Curriculum and Instruction
Council meetings was to engage the RPS Board of Education (BOE) committee members in updates and
inquiry about new and ongoing curriculum and instruction initiatives focused on improving student
learning for all.

2023/24 Elementary Curriculum - Social and Emotional Learning
Mike Ramm shared with the committee that since the pandemic there has been an increased need for

social emotional learning in order to teach students life-long behaviors and tools to assist in maintaining

relationships, problem solving, and handling conflict. Prior to the pandemic, our district utilized a

Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports (PBIS) at the elementary level and, although some of the

programming remains, most elementaries have been implementing other lessons to promote positive

behaviors on their own. The utilization of different programs across our district does not allow the

district to fully support the benefits of the curriculum with professional learning, data tracking and

personnel.

The elementary principals approached Mike Ramm requesting a consistent program that will build

structure and use common language across all elementary buildings. Mike partnered with Larinda Fase,

the district’s Director of Special Programs, as she and Mindy McGinn at Lakes Elementary piloted “Trails”

during the 2022/23 school year. Lakes was one of 20 Kent County Schools that were allowed to pilot

through a Kent ISD Sponsored grant. “Trails” is a curriculum resource authored to teach the CASEL

Framework as a useful curriculum that strengthens academic behaviors while fostering qualities such as

empathy, self-awareness and respect, to name only a few.

Throughout this previous school year, Mindy McGinn, principal at Lakes Elementary, piloted the program

with 18 teachers using the following tiered structure:

https://casel.org/fundamentals-of-sel/what-is-the-casel-framework/
https://casel.org/fundamentals-of-sel/what-is-the-casel-framework/


Tier 1 - curriculum that is taught by teachers through twenty, 30 minute lessons focusing on 5 core

competencies (self-awareness, self-management, responsible decision making, relationship skills and

social awareness) that can be segmented depending on the teacher and classroom schedule.

Tier 2 - if students need additional behavior intervention, a team of adults in the building will develop

supportive measures for the student or group of students.

Tier 3 - Use our district team to guide students/families toward professional help or assistance at the

building, or even develop a transition plan to return to the building, if applicable.

At the end of the school year, the elementary principals gathered to discuss the program at Lakes, with

the primary focus on promoting positive academic behaviors. As a result of the need and successful

pilot, the elementary principal team unanimously agreed to request the implementation of “Trails” in

2023/24 and they are excited about how the program will positively influence their buildings in the

future.

The Kent ISD has grant availability for adoption and implementation of the “Trails” program and has

offered a partnership with RPS that would make the program free of charge for our district for the 23-24

and 24-25 school years. This would save RPS $250,000 in costs associated with staff training, on-line

curriculum support, slide docs, classroom lessons, etc.

Rockford Public Schools will provide parent/guardian introductory information to the program and

lessons prior to implementation. Lakes Elementary did not have any families “opt out” during their pilot,

but that is always an option if families choose.

Preliminary Spring Student Achievement Results

Mike showed a sampling of K-8 spring student achievement preliminary results. Overall, the district
continues to trend positively with noticeable increases in M-STEP averages for ELA, Math, Science and
Social Studies. NWEA achievement and conditional growth also are trending positively and Mike stated
that after PSAT/SAT results are released and the embargo is lifted, he will do a board report to share
results and future focus areas.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 a.m.

`















































































Human Resources Department 
Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 

From: Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

Date: July 10, 2023 

Subject: 2023-2024 SCHOOL YEAR CERTIFIED STAFF EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  Andrew Abissi Computer Science Teacher High School 

Evan Coberly Math Teacher East Middle 

Elizabeth Coles 5th Grade Spanish Immersion Teacher Roguewood Elementary 

Penney Johnson Spanish Immersion Teacher High School 

Gilbert Torres 6th & 8th  Grade SI Social Studies North Middle 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   








	Agenda
	Informational Agenda

	Minutes 061223
	BOARD COVER SHEET
	BOARD

	DOCUMENTATION
	DETAILED GENERAL FUND-RETIREMENT
	DETAILED 2019 BOND REGULAR CHECKS
	DETAILED 2019 BOND MANUAL CHECKS
	DETAILED 2019 BOND CREDIT CARD
	DETAILED 2023 BOND REGULAR CKS
	DETAILED 2023 BOND MANUAL CKS
	DETAILED GENERAL FUND MANUAL CHECK
	DETAILED GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD
	DETAILED GENERAL FUND-CHECKS

	Certified Staff Resignations
	23-24 School Bank Accounts
	Curriculum and Instruction Council Minutes 061523
	Ramm - SEL Curriculum
	Certified Staff Recommendations
	Summer 2024 Tax Resolution
	Agenda.pdf
	Informational Agenda




